United Nations Nations Unies

ECONOMIC CONSEIL UNRESTRICTED
AND ECONOMIQUE =/cv.4/sr.51
SOCIAL COUNCIL ET SOCIAL 9 Jwe W48

CRIGINAL: FEENCH

COMNICOION ON NOAN RICHTS
THIRD SESSION
SUMMARY RKECORD OF THE FIFTY-FIRST MEETING

Lako Succesa, New York
Fridaey, 28 May 1948, at 10.45 a.m.

Chairmen: Mrg. Franklin D. ROOSEVELT United States of America
Vice-Chalrmen: Mr. CHARG WU China
My. Rene CAGSIN France
Rapporteur: Mr. AZKOUL Lebanon
Members: Mr. HOOD Austrelia
Mr. LEBEAU Belgium
Mr. A. STEPANFEKO Byeloruselan Soviet
Socialist Rerublic
Mr. SANTA CRUZ Chile
Mr. Omar LOUTFI Egynt
Mrs. MEHTA Indic
Mr, M. de J. QUIJANO Panama
Mr. LOFEZ Philippines
Mr. KLEKOVKIN Ukrainian Soviet Sccialist Republl
Mr. PAVLOV Union of Soviet Socialist Republic:
M, WILSON United Kingdom
Mr. MORA Uruguay
Mr. VILFAN Yugoslavia

Also present:

Mrs. LEDON Commiselon on the Status of Women

Representatives of Speciallzed Agencies:

Mr. R. W, COX International Labour Organizetion

Consultants from non-governmental organizations:

Miss Toni SENDER Americen Federation of labor
Mr. A. J. van ISTENRDAIL International Tederation of
: Christian Trade Unions

Secretariat: Mr. J. HUMPHEREY Director of the Humen Rights Division
Mr. E. LAWSON Secretary of the Commission

Any corrections of this record should be submitted in writing,
in either of the working languages (English or French), and within
twenty-four hours, to Mr. E. Delavenay, Director, Official Records
Division, Room CC-119, Iake Success. Corrections should be accuim-
panied by or incorporatsd in a letter, on lLeaded notepaper, bearilng
the approrriate sympol number and encloeed in an envelopo marked
"Urgent". Corrections can be dealt with more speedily by the services
concerned if delegations will be good enough to incorporate then in a
mimeographed copy of the record.



E/CN.4/SR.51
Fape 2

CONSIDERATICON OF ARTICLE 2 OF THE TECLARATION (documents E/CN.L4/95,
E/CN.4/99, E/CN.4/102, E/600)

Mr. STEPRNENKO (Byeloruesian Sovist Socialist Republic)
thought that a comparison of the Genevae text of Article 2 of the
Declaraticon with the amendmente to it proposed by the Chinese delegation
and by the Ind‘en and United Xingdom delegations would reveal that the
amendments not only failed to imprcve the text, but were actually
inferior to it.

In spite of eome rather serious deficienciles, Article 2 as given
in the report of the second sessicn of the Commission on Human Rigate
preserved the idea of the Jjust requiremente of the democratic State.
Those wordse were left out of the Chinese eamendment end of tke Indian
and United Kingdom emendmernt. He wondered what the reasons for their
deletion might be. The representative of Chile had stated during the
previous mesting that ths wbrd "democracy" ought to be eliminated
because it had not been clearly defined. The Commission would be
running counter to the purposes for which it had been set up if it
deleted all mention of democracy in the Declaration. He would vote

against any emendment deleting the word.

Mr. SANTA CRUZ (Chile) denied having seid that the concept of
democracy had not been clearly defined. He hed defined what he personally
meant by the word; but different ideas of democracy had been expreseed
in the Commiesion. If the meaning of the word were not defined, Article 2
might lead to abuses. The notion of the just requirements of the
democratic State varied from country to zountry. For example, Marxiem alimed
at the creation of a olassless society in which the State as such no
longer existed. This definition of its aims ehowed that its highest
stage had not yet been achieved in countries like the USSR, where &
poverful State existed. According to the Marxist theory, the USSR was

/in the



E/fow.h/oR.51
Page 3

in the intermediate stage of the dictatorship of the proletariat.

The orgena of information, culture and the arts were sontrolled by
the Party because the revolutionery conscience was the sole source of
lew. The USSR Government considered that even in that intermedlate
stage, 1t rerresented a democratic State. But he, for his part, could
not imagine that dictatorehip, even if temporary, could exist side by
pide with democracy. The Commliseion was faced with two different
concepta of human rights, es had been clearly demonstrated in
connexlon with the questicn of the right of emigration. It was

therefore only logical to define the notion of democracy.

Mr. LEBRAU (Belgium) explained that in his country the word
"democracy” was rarely used except in the expression "democratic. freedoms.”
Those freedoms were so deeply rooted in the Belgian netional conscierce
that there was no need to speak of them except when they were endangered
ag, for example, by foreign occupation. Counsequently he thought such a
formula would not serve any ugsful purpose, sginge democrac_y wag one of
the fundamental institutions of his people and since it had, during
recent. decades, come to have different meanings in different countries.

Mr. Lebeau would vote for the French ameniment which he preferred
to the Drafting Committee's text, because it spoke firstly of man's
duties towards society and secondly of the free .developmeﬁt of his

Personality.

Mrs. MEFIA (India) considered the Indian and United Kingdom
emendment accurate and concide. The words "democratic State" had been
avoided as they covered different concepts. Moreover, *here seemed no
need to may-that men had duties towards society since e declaration of

rights, not duties, was being drafted.
/Mr. VILFAN



E/oK.L/SR.51
Page L
Mr. VIIFAN (Yugoslavia) pointed to a contradiction in the

arpguzentg advanced by those who favoured the Indian and United Kingdom
amendment. Article 2 wae intended t5 define the limitatlons to human
righte. Those who supported the amendment feared that the limitatlons
might be intervreted lifferently end that the word "democracy” might
lead to abuses. He felt on the contrary that the wording suggested
in the amendment was far more restrictlive than the former srticle 2.
According to the amendment, each State would be entitled to limit human
rights to the extent to whiech 1t coneidered them contrary to the interests
of soodety and the State. Such a wording would lea—e the door open for
1ndepéndent decislons.

Referring to the observations mede by the Belgian representative,
he stressed thet democratic freedomswere &t present still fthreatened by
the remnante of fascism. Tt was therefore important to mention them; and
the Belgien representative's argument could be turned against him.

The Drafting Committee's text was preferable to the French draft
amendrment. The Declaration dealt with huran rights, not duties. He
would therefore vote against both the French esmendment and the Indian

and United Kingdcm amendment.

Mr. MORA (ﬁruguay) supported the Indian and United Kingdom
amendment. There were certain dangers in the text suggested by the
Drafting Cormittee and by the French amendment, for it involved three
categories of limitations: the righte of othérs, the rights of the
State, and the righte of society. A distinction between the State
and soclety might lead to abuses since the State acted only in the
name of soclety; it was better to delete all mention of intervention
by the State.

JMr. AZKOUL



E/CH.:/SR.51
Page 5
Mr. AZKOUL (Lebanon) observed that the first three articles
of the Daclération laid the foundation for the rights subsequently
entmerated; for thet reason it was permissible to mention in them the
duties of the Individuel. In the first article, the Commission had
stated the basis for human rights; the second article should inclﬁde
the bases for the limitation of those rights. He therefore accepted the
first part of the French amendment.

Tn the 3econd part of the amendment the word "State" was open to
question. All countries did not consider the State as a desirable entlty
in itself, with rights that might conflict with the rights of the individual.
Whatever opinion the varlous members of the Commission might hold on the
subject the word "State" should be deleted, since it stood for an idea
on whish all 4id not 'agree. On the other hand the words "the welfarev and
security of all" were acceptable to everybody. He agreed with the rervre-
sentative of Chile that the word "demccracy” should not be used. He would
be willing to speak of the rights of a democratic State if those rights
had been previously definedi by an international instrument, but that had
not beéﬁ done.

He therefore proposed that the first part of the French émend.ment
ahould bte combined withrthe gecond part of the Indian and United Kingdom

emendment beginning with the words "subject only..."

Mr. CHANG (China) suggested that his amendment should be changed
to read as follows: "The exercise of these rights requires recognition
of the rights of others and the welfare of all." Welfare included the
1dee of security; and recognition of the rights of all included the idea
of democrecy. He stressed fhe value of the voluntary element in the
word "recognitibaM.". "mphasis should be placed not on restraining:

beople, but on educating them. The purpose of all social and political

: / education



E/CN.4/SR.51
Tage 6

education was the veluntery recognition of the rights of others. The
Commiselionls ideal should not be the impogition of reetrictions but
rather the voluntary recognlition by all ol the rights of othere. That

was the 1deal which the Declaration ghould exuress.

Mr. WILSON (United Kingdom) remarked thet while the Chinese
reprecentativels proposal wee in meny ways a generous one it did contain
some dangers too. The limitetions provided for in the indian and United
Kingdom amendment.included those voluntarily accepted, but in any form of
human soclety 1t was imgperative that the State should impose_certain limita-
tiﬁns in the interest or all. The word "recogmition” merely expressed an

ideel and was inadequate to ensure the fullilment of the Commission's task.

Mr. HOOD (Australie) observed that the purpose of article 2
was to emphaslize the fact that every right carried with it obligations.
That 1dea was expressed in the text prepared at the second esession at
Geneva and, more.specifically, In the French amendment, but it es not
clearly expressed in the Indian and United Kingdom amendment. If there
ghould in fact be very definite limitations on the exercise of human
rights, & clear statement to that effect should be made. He favoured
the text prepered at the second session at Ceneva and the Frencﬁ draft,
and the two might be combined and imrroved td read as follows: "In the
exercige of his rights everyone 1s limited by the righfs of others and by
hle dutles to the democratic soclety which enables him freely to develop
his epirit."

He wae opposed to the words "democratic State" but preferred to

keep the word "demooratic” in connexion with "society".

Mir. PAVLOV



E/CN.4/SR.51

-~

Page 7

Mr. PAVLOV (Union of Soviet Soclalist Republics) began by remarking
thet the notlons of the State and of democratic society were embodied in the
documents signed during the war. No difficulties had then appeared, because
the conception of democracy provided a common basils for every interpretation;
there was thus no reason for rejecting it to-day.

The idea contained in the United Kingdom proposal erred in being too vague.
Who was to define the "security" and the "welfere" of all? If the Commission
were 1o consider such difficulties of definition, many other articles of the
Convention would have to be dismissed.

He had been challenged to speak of democracy, and he accepted the challenge
In his view, a democracy was a State in which all citizens had an equal right
to participate in the activities of the Goverrment. That principle was ccmmon
to all democracies. Other features common to all democratic States end insti-
tutions were the fact that officlals were elected and could be superseded, the
opportunity given to the mmsses to perticipate in govermment, the obligation
for & minority to submit to the mejority of the people, and accessibility to
all offices of State.

. The idea of dechracy wag linked even by its etymology with that of the

people and the powsr of the people. It had been conceived in antiquity; but
the Greeks had not placed power effectively in the hands of the people, whom
they regerded as consisting of none but frée-born Gresk citizens, Hence the
majoxrity of the population, being composed of foreircmers living in Greece or
olse of slaves, had no powers. By "froe people" the Greoks meant the aristoc-
racy, and their "democratic" State was governed by slave-owners.

In a modern democracy, the State was not a power 'imposed on soclety by forc.
It was g product of the society which had given it birth. The State had un-
fortunately in certain ceses detached 1tself from the soclety from which it
had sprung, end had coms to dominate and oppress that scciety; the police State,

in fact, came into being, and was supported by the class which controllsd its

sconomy .
i mMaa. Ciata



E/CN.4/SR.51
Page 8

The State was not eternel; it would cease to exist es soon as class dis-
tinctions disappeared. It was necessary to preserve it for the time beilng in
order to protect collective property and to defend the people against 1ts ex-
ternal enemies (in particular foreign spies and ssboteurs). Thus certain measu
such as restrictlons on freedom of movement, were 1n the USSR only a defensive
reaction of the Soviet people. Thé State also took charge of the organization
of economic and cultural activities. If the Soviet Union had hed no enemies,
the Stete would have already ceased to exist, but she was strrounded by them
and was therefore forced to take steps to defend herself.

The advantage of the Soviet conception of the State was that 1t weas doemo-
cratic in a new sense of the word., It was supported by the immense meJority
of the people and was bound up with the defence of fundamental human rights.
That was true democrecy: the right to participate In govermment. That right
existed in theory in many States, but was not exercised in fact.

Quoting figures to shcw the extent to which the peoples of the Soviet Union
participated in government, he said 101,717,000 electors had reglstered in the
last national elections. Out of that number, 101,450,000 had voted, is. a pro-
portion of 99.7%. The candidates on the Govermmental Communist list had receive:
100 million votes, i.e. $9.18%. There had been 819,000 adverse votes, 1i.e. 0.19.

In the looal elections there had been 100,630,000 voters and the opposition

amounted to only 818,000 votes, i.e. 0.18%.

Soviet popular democracy was thus based on unity. The same characteristic
was found in certain States of Fastern Europe. That unity had also been demon-
strated by the Soviet people during the war; they had defended thelr system of
Govermment when they might have abandoned it; they had stoocd firm when they might
have dasertéd. The heroism and the spirit of sacrifice of the Russlan people
had ghown how much they valued the system. It was therefore a real democracy.

It had been claimed that the Soviet system was not a hundred per cent demo-

cratic because it had only one party. Since when was the existence of a number

of parties the criterion of democracy? Such a variety of partles merely signif’se
/the existe



E/CN.4/SR.51
Page 9

the exlstence of a class war: - there were landowners'® parties, middle class
paerties, peasants'?:grkers' rarties, the last two being often separated by
divergent interests.

In the coviet Unlon there was nelther a middle class nor a landowning
cless, and the fundamental interests of the peasants and the workers were ident.
icel. Wes 1t suggested that there should be & number of parties in the USSR?

In that case a middle cless and & landowning class would have to be introduced
there. But the Soviet people could well dispense with such exploiting claeses.
They did not want them.

Thus the moral unity of society under the Soviet regime had proved itself
in the test of war and had subsequently been confirmed by the elections. Millio?
of people participated in the activities of the central Government and the local’
governments, The single party adequately defended the intereosts of the people
and the rights of man.

The Sovliet Union did not repudiate the progressive elements in the bourgeo?,
or capitalist democracies, The capitalist system wes obviously an advance on
the feudal system; it was obviously more tolerable than the Hitlerian State,
the symbol of the totalitarian State. Under the capitalist system govermnment
was carried on not by the people, but by e minority, by the Rockefellers and
the Morgans. Frequently trusts and monopolies were the mastefs. Thaet was not
démocracy; capitalism rejected democracy and replacéd it by an oligarchy.

He didmt wish to criticize American democracy, since it had many features
in common with Soviet democracy. The discussion had been caused by the remarks
made by certain delegates,

He observed that the struggle against Fascism had not been delayed.until
& definition of 1t was found, and for ccmpareble reasons the repreéentative of

the USSR opposed the deletlion of all mention of demoeracy in article 2.

Mr. CASSIN (Frence) pointed out that the French text fulfilled certain
requirements not covered by the United Kingdom Indian proposal. In fact, 1t

was a comﬁination of three different texts:
/1. The text



E/CN.L/SR.51
Page 10

1. The text describing soclety's duty towards the individual;

2. The text defining the fundemental duties of man;

3. Finally, the text according to which everyone is limited 1n the
sxercise of his rights by the rights of others.

Those three elements had reappeered during the discussion. The Indian ang
United Kingdom proposal, however, did not refer to the relaticns between man
and soclety or to their mutual duties.

The second part of the French text was & compromise; that was why it .
retained the 1dea of the democratic State, which was much less important than
that of democracy itself. The State was, in fact, & perisheble product of
soclety, but it had to be meintained, for it centralized the legislative power.

Govermnment of the people, by the people, for the people: he could sese no
reason for abandoning that conceptlon of democracy. In his view the criterion
of democracy in any nation was the extent to which human rights were really
reapected. A State which did not respect them was not democratic, even though
it claimed to be so; hence the supreme importence of the word, which must be
retained.

~If the text proposed by his delegation were not adopted, he would vote In

favour of the text proposed by the representative of Australis.

The CHAIEMAN appointed a drafting committee, composed of the repre-
sentatives of Australia, China, France, India, Lebanon and the United Kingdom,
to consider the various proposals before the Commiscion and submit two téxte,
;ne containing and the other omitting the notion of the dgmocratic State. Ifr
the Committee could not reach agreement, it would at least suggést the order

in which the various proposels should be put to the vote.

Mr. IOPEZ (Philippinas), had beon deeply interested in the lengthy
discussion of the Soviet Undcn representative, but he did not think it served

any useful purpose at the present stage of the discussion. His delegation
/hed voted



E/CN.4/SR.51
Page 11

hed voted in favour of the Geneva text end was not afreid of the word democracy.
Such fears would not exist had not the representative of the Soviet Union been
siven the opportunity to appear as the sole champlon of democracy.

The conceptions embodied in the Draft Declaration were all abetract omes,
»nd 1f one of them were to be discarded for that reason, then they wruld all
have to be discarded.

He for his part would veote in favour of the text proposed by the Australian

representative,

Mr. AZKOUL (Lebanon) thought the USSR representative was confusing the
sphere of action with that of thought. The members of the Commission wers not
on a battlefield; their sole duty was to draw up a declaration,

He agreed with Mr. Caessin's conception of democracy. If the representative
of the Soviet Union insisted on drawing & distinciion between capitalist and
communist, majority and minority democracles, then there would be no otheér solu-

tion but to define in the Declaration what kind of democracy wae meant.

Mr. SANTA CRUZ (Chile) disclaimed any wish to criticize Seviet demeo-
racy; he had confined himeelf to pointing out certain differences. The speech
of the USSR representative, which had criticized other forms of demecracy, had
merely confirmed those differences, In this connection, he would recall that

twenty-one nations meeting at Bogota had adopted a resolution condemming Copawm it

as anti-democratic.

Mr. PAVLOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) considered that the
discussion should cover all possible forms of democracy. Those democracles live¢
togsther and ¢ould continue to live together in peace. If that comception was
maintained in the Declaratiom, none of those forms need be excluded. The
essential point in his opinien was respect for the will of the people, That

Principle had been recognized in the Atlantic Charter,
/The representctive



E/CN.:/SR.51
Page 12

The rapresentative of the USSR concluded by appealing to all the members
to co-operate, and stated that he would like to have an immediate vote on the
various proposals. He would vote in favour of the text proposed by the French

delegeticn and the Geneva text.

Mr. CASSIN (France) recelled that there were three different idees
in connection with article 2:
1. To mention the democratic State;
2. To meke no mentlion either cf the State or of democracy;
3. To mention democratic society.
He thought, therefore, that the Drafting Committee should submit three
texts instead of two.

The meeting rose at 12:55 p.m.






